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SUBJECT:   A briefing on the independent review of the Solid Waste Transfer and Waste Export System Plan.   
SUMMARY: 

Ordinance 14971 established a process for an independent, third party review of critical issues and assumptions identified by various stakeholder members of the federated regional waste management system regarding the proposed Solid Waste Transfer and Waste Export System Plan.   The ordinance states:
“The council shall direct its staff to convene and oversee completion of a written report from an independent third-party review panel for the waste export plan….  The process shall include outreach from key stakeholders, including at a minimum the solid waste advisory committee, the metropolitan solid waste management advisory committee and the interjurisdictional technical staff group as questions are developed for the third-party independent review”

After extensive consultation with stakeholders as directed, in early August 2006 d ation of Independent, Third Party Review Consultant for Solid Wastee host jurisdiction, and $2 retainCouncil staff compiled a set of 10 questions in six topical areas for consultation with an independent, third party technical review panel.  The questions – approved by stakeholders and the King County Council -- are attached (Attachment 1)

In late summer 2006, Council staff worked with county procurement experts to develop and issue a “Request for Proposals” or “RFP”.    The subsequent advertisement asked for proposals from consultants able to “…demonstrate ability to provide appropriate technical, policy, financial and economic expertise to the Metropolitan King County Council by means of an assembled panel of recognized experts qualified to provide an independent review”.  

As a result of the RFP and selection process, King County contracted with a large East coast-based firm, Gershman, Brickner & Bratton, Inc (GBB) of Fairfax, Virginia and their team of sub-consultants to conduct the review and prepare a report.

GBB and other consultants conducted field visits and interviews in May 2007.  They were introduced to the committee and answered questions at the May 9, 2007 Regional Policy Committee meeting.

GBB has subsequently completed their review of the numerous documents associated with the Solid Waste Transfer and Waste Export System Plan and completed their field assessments.   Their draft report was submitted to staff last week (Attachment 2).   A  copy of the report can also be found via a web link as follows:  

http://www.metrokc.gov/extranet/dnrp/swd/King_County_Draft_Report070507t.doc.
In addition to the Regional Policy Committee, the draft report has been forwarded to the Solid Waste Advisory Committee, Metropolitan Solid Waste Management Committee (MWSMAC) and the Solid Waste Division for review and comment.   Staff are requesting that comments be submitted to Mike Reed (staff to the Growth Management and Natural Resources Committee) by close of business on July 20, 2007. The report will be finalized after presentations in July and after comments are received.   

Representatives of the GBB and their consultants will make a presentation and be available to answer questions regarding their report at the Regional Policy Committee meeting.   They are making a similar presentation to the MSWMAC on July 13, 2007.

Each question developed by the stakeholders is addressed in the draft report.  A matrix showing a very short summary of each questions and the “answers” is contained in the Executive Summary.  In the body of the report, all questions have been addressed via a short answer or “cameo” response and a longer discussion or “full answer” addressing the consultants review of the question and information in the Transfer and Waste Export System Plan (or other documents/field observations). 

On a related note, Proposed Ordinance 2006-0450 is pending action in the Regional Policy Committee awaiting the completion of the independent review.   This legislation adopts the Solid Waste Transfer and Waste Export System Plan.  The committee was briefed on the plan and plan adoption at its October, 2006 meeting, including accompanying correspondence and testimony from representatives of MSWMAC recommending adoption of the plan following completion of the third-party, independent review of the plan.  Committee members agreed to delay action on the legislation until the independent review and results are known.

When the Regional Policy Committee completes its review of the independent review report – it is expected to take up Proposed Ordinance 2006-0450.  The committee chair has tentatively scheduled the next Regional Policy Committee meeting as a special meeting on August 22, 2007.

ATTACHMENTS:
1. Questions for Independent, Third-Party Review Panel

2. DRAFT - Independent, Third Party Review of the Solid Waste Transfer and Waste Export System Plan, dated July 5, 2007
ATTACHMENT 1

Questions for Independent, Third-Party Review Panel 

	Topic
	Questions/Issues

	Analysis of Projections
	1. Analyze waste generation, population and waste reduction and recycling projections and their related impact to sizing transfer system, intermodal system and regional recycling processing infrastructure.

	Public Process


	2. Are there other methods that would enhance public/stakeholders’ participation in the facility siting process?

	Transfer Stations Issues and Assumptions

 
	3. Would varying the recycling assumptions alter the number or configuration of planned transfer facilities?
4. Should future publicly owned / operated facilities have space for extended recycling activities? 
5. Do the number and location of transfer stations recommended in the Waste Export System Plan seem appropriate for King County? What changes in demographics could affect the system as configured? Are capital cost estimates in the Plan reasonable?

6. What are alternative options for providing compensation to host cities, such as, but not limited to, one time payments, payments based on tonnage, payments based on traffic, payments based on lost revenue? To what do we benchmark host city compensation payments – for example, lost revenue from utility tax or property tax?
7. Should self haul service be provided and, if so, at what levels and how should the cost be covered?



	Waste to Energy
	8. Understanding that analysis of WTE will take place in the Comp Plan update process – how might including WTE technologies in King County’s solid waste strategy affect transfer station or waste export plan recommendations?

	Financial Assumptions
	9. Review County’s economic analysis and assumptions in sensitivity analysis for early waste export and waste withdrawal.



	Sustainability
	10. Are there models or methods for the transfer of solid waste from the point of generation to final disposal that minimize fossil fuel consumption and air pollution?
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